SAMPLE EXAMINATION QUESTIONS


The following are nine actual examinations in Sports and the Law.  They are provided for your use as you see fit -- as sample questions to be distributed to and discussed with your students, or as samples for you to consider when drafting your own examination questions.  We do not recommend that you use any of these same questions, primarily for reasons of security.  These examinations have been used in the past, have been distributed to students as sample questions, and are on file as prior examinations at law schools where the authors of this casebook teach Sports and the Law.  Therefore, there is no guarantee that your students will not have access to these questions.



As you will see, most of these examinations were intended to be two hours in length, as they were the examination for a two-credit course.  One or two of the earlier examinations were for three-credit sports law courses.



Please note that the admonition at the beginning of each exam is entirely correct -- although real sports figures may be mentioned in the problems, many of the facts are simply false -- while they may in some circumstances be modeled after actual fact situations, they are purely hypothetical and do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.



The examinations primarily focus on issues concerning the Power of the Commissioner (Chapter 3), contract law (Chapters 4-6), and antitrust law (Chapters 7-13).  However, there are some questions that require a knowledge of labor law (Chapters 14-16), intellectual property law (Chapter 19), and tort law, including workers compensation issues (Chapter 18).  



If you have any questions about preparing an examination in general, questions you plan to use in your examination, or what we believe to be the "correct answers" to these exam questions, we are more than willing to field telephone calls from other professors of sports law courses.  Please do not hesitate to call us.   


EXAMINATION IN SPORTS & THE LAW


2 HOURS











May, 1998
FACTS FOR QUESTION 1 AND BEGINNING OF FACTS FOR QUESTION 2



All facts presented in this exam, while they may or may not be modeled after actual fact situations, are purely hypothetical and they do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.

INTRODUCTION


Anticipating Michael Jordan's retirement, Charles Barkley's possible retirement, and the possible lock-out by the National Basketball Association ("NBA") of its players for the 1998-99 season (or a possible strike by the players), Jerry Jones and several other owners of National Football League ("NFL") teams decide that it is a good time to start a competing basketball league.  Launched in 1998, the Football Owners' International Basketball League Enterprise ("FOIBLE") is a twenty-team, "single entity" league that will play at about the same time of year as the NBA, and is designed to avoid mistakes of the NBA and other traditional model leagues.



FOIBLE starts by signing several players who retired before their contracts with NBA teams were completed.  FOIBLE's first announcement, on May 1, 1998, is that FOIBLE has signed Earvin "Magic" Johnson as the league's first player.  Magic Johnson was an NBA all-star who retired before his contract with the Lakers expired when Magic learned he had tested positive for the HIV Virus.  The Lakers supported Johnson's decision to retire because of, among other reasons, public concerns (and other NBA players' concerns) about spread of the virus.  Johnson subsequently became a 10% owner of the Lakers.

JOHNSON'S CONTRACT WITH THE NBA'S LAKERS



Magic Johnson's contract with the Lakers had several years remaining in it and it included the following terms:



1.
The contract was for 4 years, with a $1 million signing bonus and a $2 million per year salary.  Johnson played the first two years, then retired.



2.
If Johnson ever tried to breach his contract by playing for a team in another league in the United States, he is required to return the $1 million signing bonus.



3.
If Johnson retires or voluntarily chooses not to play for any reason, the remaining contract years are suspended.  If Johnson decides to come out of retirement, the contract will be reactivated and continue from that point under the same terms as provided for the remaining years of his contract.



4.
Paragraph 9 of the Uniform Player Contract states:




"The Player represents and agrees that he has extraordinary and unique skill and ability as a basketball player, that the services to be rendered by him hereunder cannot be replaced or the loss thereof adequately compensated for in money damages, and that any breach by the Player of this contract will cause irreparable injury to the Club and its assignees.  Therefore, it is agreed that in the event it is alleged by the Club that the Player is playing, attempting or threatening to play, or negotiating for the purpose of playing, during the term of this contract, for any other person, firm, corporation or organization, the Club and its assignees (in addition to any other remedies that may be available to them judicially or by way of arbitration) shall have the right to obtain from any court or arbitrator having jurisdiction, such equitable relief as may be appropriate, including a decree enjoining the Player from any further such breach of this contract, and enjoining the Player from playing for any other person, firm, corporation or organization during the term of this contract. . . . "



5.
The contract provides that any dispute between any Team and any Player shall be resolved in arbitration before the Commissioner of the NBA.

JOHNSON'S CONTRACT WITH FOIBLE


Johnson's FOIBLE contract includes the following terms:



1.
A signing bonus -- as the first star player to sign on with the new league -- $3 million paid as follows: $1 million when he signed, $1 million the first day of the second FOIBLE season, and $1 million the first day of the third FOIBLE season.



2.
$5 million salary per year for three years.

THE LAKERS' RESPONSE


The Lakers send Magic Johnson a letter to notify him that the Lakers are very excited that Magic Johnson has decided to come out of retirement and they expect him to honor the two years remaining on his contract with the Lakers.  A copy of the letter is sent to NBA Commissioner David Stern.  Johnson responds that he retired as an NBA player several years ago, his contract ended, and he will not be playing for the Lakers.  The Lakers notify Commissioner Stern of their dispute with Mr. Johnson.

THE NBA'S RESPONSE


Commissioner Stern sends two letters to the Lakers and Magic Johnson.  NBA Letter #1 tells the Lakers and Johnson that their dispute will be arbitrated before the NBA Commissioner.  NBA Letter #2 tells the Lakers and Johnson they are violating the NBA Constitution & Bylaws, which prohibits an active NBA Player from owning any interest in any NBA Team, and the Commissioner is convening a separate hearing to deal with that issue.  



Magic Johnson's attorney writes to Commissioner Stern, disagrees with both NBA letters, and says Commissioner Stern cannot arbitrate either dispute, Magic Johnson will not be participating in either hearing for a great many reasons, and Magic Johnson reserves all of his rights.

THE ARBITRATION HEARING


Commissioner Stern appoints a noted sports law professor and author, Michael Cozzillio, to represent Magic Johnson's interests at the arbitration hearing, and the NBA agrees to pay Professor Cozzillio at his normal hourly consulting rate for whatever work he believes is necessary to represent Magic Johnson's interests.  Professor Cozzillio informs the Commissioner that if Johnson were his client (as opposed to merely being appointed to represent his interests), Professor Cozzillio might recommend that Johnson go to Court to try to get a court order, enjoining Commissioner Stern from proceeding.  Nevertheless, Professor Cozzillio does not file with a court, but rather attends the arbitration hearing and makes all of the arguments he can imagine on Johnson's behalf, and does a first class job.

COMMISSIONER STERN'S ARBITRATION DECISION


Commissioner Stern rules that the Lakers' contract with Magic Johnson is valid and enforceable and has two years remaining.  He orders Magic Johnson to play for the Lakers or face a substantial fine.  He also issues a decree enjoining Magic Johnson from any further breach of his contract with the Lakers, and enjoining Johnson from playing for any other person, firm, corporation or organization during the remaining term of his contract with the Lakers.



Commissioner Stern then holds that Magic Johnson's continued ownership of an interest in the Lakers is improper for two reasons.  First, because he is now again under contract to play for the Lakers, he is prohibited from holding such an interest in an NBA team.  Second, Commissioner Stern decides that Johnson's support of a competing league is a breach of his fiduciary duty to the NBA and the Lakers, and constitutes conduct not in the best interest of basketball under the NBA Constitution & Bylaws.  In his decision, Commissioner Stern makes it clear that no ownership by any NBA owner in a competing professional basketball league will be permitted.



Commissioner Stern orders that the Lakers not permit Magic Johnson to have any role in the management of the Lakers and that his interest in the Lakers be sold within ninety (90) days, either by Magic Johnson, or by Professor Cozzillio if Mr. Johnson refuses.

THE PROCEEDING IN COURT


The NBA and the Lakers go into a Court with jurisdiction and file suit against Earvin "Magic" Johnson, seeking injunctive and declaratory relief to enforce Commissioner Stern's arbitration decision.  In the alternative, the NBA and the Lakers file breach of contract claims against Johnson, seeking the same relief as that ordered by Commissioner Stern.  FOIBLE intervenes in the lawsuit as a defendant to enforce its contract with Magic Johnson.  Johnson defends the lawsuit and, in the alternative, files a cross-claim against FOIBLE, seeking a declaratory judgment that FOIBLE must pay him the full $3 million signing bonus when the payments come due.

QUESTION 1


The Judge handling the NBA's and Lakers' lawsuit turns to you for advice about the non-antitrust issues, because you are her only law clerk who has taken a sports law class.  Please draft a memorandum for the Judge, explaining the arguments of the parties, and giving her your recommendations about all of the issues (except, please do not address any antitrust issues) and what decisions she should issue.

THE NBPA'S REACTION TO FOIBLE


The National Basketball Players Association ("NBPA") is the union that represents NBA players in collective bargaining negotiations with the NBA and its member teams.  The NBPA Executive Director sent a letter to FOIBLE, expressing support for the concept of a second major professional basketball league, but criticizing FOIBLE's plans to use its alleged single entity status as a means for depressing player salaries.  The NBPA seeks a meeting with the leadership of FOIBLE.  FOIBLE's counsel responds that FOIBLE has not yet hired all of its players, and its players have not indicated whether they want to be represented by a union and, if so, by which union.  Therefore, FOIBLE's counsel writes, "it would be inappropriate for us to meet with you, and it is inappropriate for you to seek such a meeting.  However, we appreciate your interest in FOIBLE, and we hope your interest continues."

THE NBA'S NEGOTIATIONS WITH THE NBPA


The NBA's labor agreement with the NBPA expired July 31, 1998.  As anticipated, despite the launch of the new league, FOIBLE, collective bargaining negotiations between the NBA and NBPA have not yielded an overall collective bargaining agreement.  The NBPA has made it clear to the NBA that if the parties reach an impasse and the NBA locks out the players or forces the players to strike, the players will vote to decertify the NBPA as their collective bargaining representative and will immediately file antitrust claims against all of the NBA's player restraints, including the NBA salary cap, NBA restrictions on free agency, and the NBA player draft.  In the meantime, the NBA and the NBPA continue to negotiate and to operate under the provisions of the recently-expired collective bargaining agreement.

THE NBA-NBPA AGREEMENT ON ADDITIONAL TERMS


  However, on August 31, 1998 the NBA and the NBPA announce that they have reached a limited agreement on the following amendments to the expired collective bargaining agreement, and that these terms will take effect immediately:



1.
During any strike or lock-out, no NBA player can play for any competing league.



2.
Because of the players' interest in competition between FOIBLE and the NBA, no NBA owner can own any interest in FOIBLE or any FOIBLE team.  The players' concern is that if a player is drafted by an NBA team with an owner associated with FOIBLE, the player will be unable to cause a bidding war between that NBA team and FOIBLE.



3.
To ensure that the NBA networks are promoting the NBA and NBA players, television networks (over the air or cable) that broadcasts NBA games will have exclusive contracts that will prohibit them from broadcasting any professional football games or any non-NBA professional basketball games.  This provision will affect all of the NBA's broadcast partners -- NBC, TBS, TNT -- and the superstations that broadcast NBA games nationally (e.g., WGN in Chicago), but not non-superstation over-the-air television stations that have local contracts with a single NBA team.



 4.
Players who leave the NBA when their contracts expire, to retire or to play for a single entity professional basketball league, will not be free agents if they decide they want to return to the NBA.  Rather, they will be subject to a supplemental draft on the same terms as the NBA rookie draft and will be subject to the NBA's three year restrictions on free agency (but will not be subject to the NBA rookie salary cap) if and when they decide they want to return to the NBA.

FOIBLE'S RESPONSE


As soon as the new NBA-NBPA terms are announced, FOIBLE and its owners file suit in federal court against Commissioner, Stern, the NBA and its member clubs, and the NBPA, alleging violations of federal antitrust laws.  The case is assigned to the same judge handling the NBA's case against Magic Johnson that was discussed in Question 1.

QUESTION 2


The Judge's law clerk handling the antitrust issues decided he really did not want to be a lawyer and quit.



Therefore, the Judge has turned to you to do a second memorandum, this one addressing all of FOIBLE's potential antitrust claims based on any of the conduct described (whether in the original fact pattern or the continuation).  Please draft a memorandum for the Judge, explaining the arguments of the parties, and giving her your recommendations about all of the antitrust issues and what decisions she should issue.
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FACT PATTERN FOR BOTH QUESTIONS 



All facts presented in this exam, while they may or may not be modeled after actual fact situations, are purely hypothetical and they do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.

SEE ATTACHED EXCERPTS FROM THE MAJOR LEAGUE AGREEMENT!



A new Commissioner of Baseball, Bob Uecker, has been elected unanimously.  He is hired pursuant to the attached provisions of the Major League Agreement.  Shortly after Commissioner Uecker takes office, the owners of Major League Baseball's ("MLB") Pittsburgh Pirates announce the sale of their team to Billionaire Bill Gates, the Chairman of Microsoft, for $250 million, and Gates announces that he is relocating the team, to be the Hawaii Microchips and play its games in Honolulu and Maui.  Gates makes it clear that his purchase of the team will not go forward if the relocation is disapproved.



The sale of the team to Gates is approved unanimously, but the relocation is disapproved.  All fourteen (14) American League team owners vote to approve the relocation, but the National League owners vote 3-7-4:  3 support the move, 7 oppose the move, and 4 abstain.  It is clear from the prior interpretation of the Major League Agreement that abstentions count the same as "No" votes -- they are not votes to approve.  The voting was as set out below.  



In the meeting, the Cubs and Rockies owners said they abstained because of concern that the Major League rules about relocation may violate federal antitrust laws.  The Padres' owner said he abstained because he believed he had a conflict of interest -- his team played a few 1997 games in Hawaii, and could not do so if a team relocated to Hawaii.



The Reds' owner said she voted "No" because she could not take her dog to Hawaii for Reds away games.  The other owners who voted "No" identified a number of reasons for their decision to oppose the relocation.  These included:  (1) the Pirates were an historic franchise and it would hurt baseball and its tradition if the Pirates left Pittsburgh, (2) if the Pirates were permitted to relocate, other teams might believe they had the right to relocate, (3) Congress would be very upset with baseball if they permitted the Pirates to relocate, (4) travelling to Hawaii for away games would be very expensive, (5) traditional rivalries, such as New York-Pittsburgh, Philadelphia-Pittsburgh, and St. Louis-Pittsburgh would be lost, (6) the distance, flight time, and time change to Hawaii would wreak havoc with television schedules, would cause player jet lag, and would make game scheduling difficult (because of the long flights), (7) Hawaii might not have enough population to support an MLB team with eighty-one home games, and (8) MLB had already alienated fans enough with strikes, lockouts, and concerns about free agents leaving their teams -- it does not need "franchise free agency."  Two owners also said they voted "No" because of a concern that Bill Gates would use his billions of dollars to buy-up all of the top free agents in the league, and that would be likely to cause a further escalation in overall player salaries.

  

A number of owners who voted "Yes" said they opposed the relocation, but voted "Yes" because of antitrust concerns.

VOTE ON RELOCATION OF TEAM TO HAWAII
AMERICAN LEAGUE


NATIONAL LEAGUE

East





East
Baltimore Orioles
Yes


Atlanta Braves


Yes

New York Yankees   
Yes


Florida Marlins

Yes

Boston Red Sox
Yes


Montreal Expos

No

Toronto Blue Jays  
Yes


New York Mets

No

Detroit Tigers
    
Yes


Philadelphia Phillies

No

Central





Central
Milwaukee Brewers  
Yes 


Houston Astros

Abstain

Cleveland Indians  
Yes


Pittsburgh Pirates

Yes

Kansas City Royals 
Yes


St. Louis Cardinals

No

Minnesota Twins    
Yes


Cincinnati Reds

No

Chicago White Sox  
Yes


Chicago Cubs


Abstain

West





West
Seattle Mariners   
Yes


Colorado Rockies

Abstain

Texas Rangers
    
Yes


San Francisco Giants

No

Anaheim Angels
Yes


Los Angeles Dodgers

No

Oakland Athletics  
Yes


San Diego Padres

Abstain

QUESTION #1.
Commissioner Uecker is very concerned about the owners' vote to block relocation.  He believes solving the Pirates' financial problems and bringing Bill Gates into the league would be in the best interests of baseball.  Uecker believes the litigation that is likely to result from the disapproval of the relocation may tear baseball apart.  He wants to use his power as the Commissioner to stop that from happening.



Therefore, Commissioner Uecker responds as follows:



1.
Commissioner Uecker asks the Pirates to send him a letter complaining about the decision if they oppose the MLB owners' decision to disapprove the request to relocate.  The owner of the Pirates sends Uecker a complaining letter.  



2.
Commissioner Uecker investigates the disapproval of the request to relocate, pursuant to Article I, Section 2(b) of the Major League Agreement, upon the Pirates' complaint and his own initiative.



3.
Commissioner Uecker adopts rules and regulations, effective retroactively, that require that a request to relocate only be disapproved if the owners determine that the relocation will cause an overall reduction in interest in baseball, will hurt the sport of baseball, will cause the public and fans to lose confidence in Major League Baseball, and will hurt Major League Baseball economically.



4.
Applying the standard set out in #3, above, Commissioner Uecker says that (1) having Gates, with his technological brilliance, as an owner of an MLB team and a participant in league operations will help MLB in many ways, (2) having a team in Hawaii will help MLB reach new fans in Hawaii and Japan, (3) having Gates as an owner and a team in Hawaii will help MLB expand the sport of baseball internationally, (4) attendance in Hawaii will almost certainly exceed recent attendance figures for the Pirates in Pittsburgh, and (5) the interest in a new team will lead to tremendous marketing potential for Hawaii Microchips licensed products.  Therefore, Uecker determines that the standard is not satisfied. 



5.
Commissioner Uecker issues a decision that states that (a) the disapproval may be unlawful, and to avoid the illegality of the conduct and the risk of MLB antitrust liability, it must be overturned, and (b) the standard in #3, above, was not satisfied, and therefore the disapproval must be overturned because the disapproval was an act not in the best interests of the national game of baseball.  The decision approves the relocation of the Pirates to Hawaii.



6.
Commissioner Uecker's decision also orders that any disagreement with his decision to approve the relocation shall be submitted to arbitration, with Commissioner Uecker or someone he will designate as the arbitrator, pursuant to Article VII, Section 1 of the Major League Agreement.



7.
Commissioner Uecker's decision also orders all MLB owners to refrain from filing any action in any court challenging his decision, citing the waiver of recourse provision in Article VII, Section 2 of the Major League Agreement, based on Uecker's determination that litigating these issues in a public forum would not be in the best interests of the national game of baseball.  The decision makes it clear that if an owner or team files an action in court to challenge his decision, Uecker will respond with severe penalties pursuant to Article I, Section 3 of the Major League Agreement.   



Ten MLB teams file suit in federal court against Commissioner Uecker, seeking an injunction against his order on the basis that Commissioner Uecker exceeded his authority and violated the Major League Agreement.  See Complaint, Atlanta Braves, et al. v. Uecker, 97 Civ. 509 (S.D.N.Y. May 9, 1997).  Uecker responds by fining each of those ten teams $250,000, suspending the owners of those ten teams for a period of six months, and ordering that Uecker's attorneys fees will be paid, on a pro rata basis, by those ten teams, through deductions from league payments of television and licensing fees.

ASSIGNMENT FOR QUESTION #1:
You are one of the law clerks to the district judge who is hearing the lawsuit, and he turns to you because of your sports law expertise.  The parties are preparing to file cross-motions for summary judgment on an expedited basis, and because of the urgency, before the briefs are filed, the judge has asked you to prepare a memorandum, explaining (1) the best argument for the plaintiffs and Uecker's best responses, and (2) your recommendations concerning the opinion the judge should issue. 

QUESTION #2.
Assume that Commissioner Uecker issued his report analyzing the relocation but did not reverse the disapproval.  You have been retained by the owner of the Pirates and by Bill Gates because they have been told that you are the World's foremost authority on the legality of efforts by professional sports leagues to restrict relocation.

ASSIGNMENT FOR QUESTION #2:
Your clients have asked you to send them a memorandum, discussing claims they may have because of the disapproval.  They have asked you to describe, discuss, and analyze their best legal theories and defenses the defendants would be likely to raise.  Finally, they want any strategic recommendations you believe they should follow, an assessment of the likelihood they will succeed on the merits, and the relief, if any, that they are likely to receive.

END OF MAY, 1997 EXAM

[EXCERPTS FROM MAJOR LEAGUE AGREEMENT]

MAJOR LEAGUE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into by and between THE NATIONAL LEAGUE OF PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL CLUBS, and each of its Members, on the one part, and THE AMERICAN LEAGUE OF PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL CLUBS, and each of its Members, on the other part.


*  *  *


Article I


THE COMMISSIONER

Sec. 1.
The Office of the Commissioner created by the Major League Agreement of January 12, 1921, is hereby continued for the period of this Agreement.

Sec. 2.
The functions of the Commissioner shall be as follows:


*  *  *


(b)
To investigate, either upon complaint or upon his own initiative, any act, transaction or practice charged, alleged or suspected to be not in the best interests of the national game of Baseball, with authority to summon persons and to order the production of documents, and, in case of refusal to appear or produce, to impose such penalties as are hereinafter provided.


(c)
To determine, after investigation, what preventive, remedial or punitive action is appropriate in the premises, and to take such action either against Major Leagues, Major League clubs or individuals, as the case may be.


*  *  *

Sec. 3.
In the case of conduct by Major Leagues, Major League Clubs, officers employees or players which is deemed by the Commissioner not to be in the best interests of Baseball, punitive action by the Commissioner for each offense may include any one or more of the following:


(a)
a reprimand; (b) deprivation of a Major League Club of representation in Joint Meetings; (c) suspension or removal of any officer or employee of a Major League or a Major League Club; (d) temporary or permanent ineligibility of a player; (e) a fine, not to exceed Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000) in the case of a Major League or a Major League Club, not to exceed Twenty Five Thousand dollars ($25,000) in the case of an officer or employee, and not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500) in the case of a player; and (f) loss of the benefit of any or all the Major League Rules, including but not limited to the denial or transfer of player selection rights provided by Major League Rules 4 and 5.

Sec. 4.
Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 2, above, the Commissioner shall take no action in the best interests of Baseball that (i) requires the clubs to take, or to refrain from taking, joint League action (by vote, agreement or otherwise) on any of the matters requiring a vote of the Clubs at a Joint Major League Meeting that are set forth in Article I, Section 9 or in Article V, Section 2(b) or (c), or (ii) requires the Member Clubs of either League to take, or to refrain from taking, League action (by vote, agreement or otherwise) on any matter to be voted upon by member Clubs of the League pursuant to their League Constitution; provided, however, that nothing in this Section 4 shall limit the Commissioner's authority to act on any matter that involves the integrity of, or public confidence in, the national game of Baseball.


*  *  *


Article IV


RULES AND REGULATIONS



Any rules or regulations proposed by the Commissioner, the Executive Council, a League or any Club, adopted as provided in this Agreement, shall be binding upon the Major Leagues and their constituent Clubs and shall not thereafter be amended except as provided in Article II, Section 2(d) or in Article V, Section 2 hereof.  The authority of the Commissioner to determine finally a disagreement between Major Leagues shall extend to the case of a disagreement over a proposed amendment.


Article V


JOINT MEETINGS


*  *  *

Sec. 2.


*  *  *


(b)
The following types of actions shall require other than a simple majority vote of all Member Clubs:


*  *  *


(3)
The vote of three-quarters (3/4 of the Clubs in the League in which the described transaction is occurring, together with a majority vote of the Clubs in the other League, shall be required for the approval of any of the following:



(i)
The expansion of either League by the addition of a new Club or Clubs;


*  *  *


   (iii)
The relocation of a Club in either League's Circuit; provided, however, the transfer of a Club to any city in the Circuit of the other Major League shall require the three-quarters (3/4) approval of the Clubs in such other League, as provided in Major League Rule 1(c)(1).


*  *  *


(f)
Interpretation and applicability of this Section 2 shall be made by the Commissioner and that decision shall be non-appealable.


*  *  *


Article VII


ARBITRATION

Sec. 1.  All disputes and controversies related in any way to professional baseball between Clubs (including, without limitation, their owners, officers, directors, employees and players), other than those whose resolution is expressly provided for by another means in this Agreement, the Major League Rules, the Constitution of either Major League or the Basic Agreement between the Major Leagues and the Major League Baseball Players Association, shall be submitted to the Commissioner, as arbitrator who, after hearing, shall have the sole and exclusive right to decide such disputes and controversies.  The procedure set forth in this Section is separate from and shall not alter or affect the procedure set forth in Article V governing the role of the commissioner at Joint Meetings of the two Major Leagues or the Commissioner's powers to act in the best interests of Baseball under Article I.

Sec. 2.  The Major Leagues and their constituent Clubs recognize that it is in the best interests of Baseball that all actions taken by the Commissioner under the authority of this Agreement, including, without limitation, Article I and this Article VII, be accepted and complied with by the Leagues and Clubs, and that the Leagues and Clubs not otherwise engage in any form of litigation between or among themselves, but resolve their differences pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.  In furtherance thereof, the Leagues and Clubs (on their own behalf and including, without limitation, on behalf of their owners, officers, directors and employees) severally agree to be finally and unappealably bound by actions of the Commissioner and all other actions or decisions taken or reached pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement and severally waive such right of recourse to the courts as would otherwise have existed in their favor.  In the event of noncompliance by any League or Club (including, without limitation, their owners, officers, directors and employees) with any action of the Commissioner, with any action or decision taken or reached pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, or with the terms or intent of this Article VII, and in addition to any other remedy which may be available to the Commissioner, the Commissioner may direct that the costs, including whether as plaintiff or defendant, of any court proceeding or other form of litigation resulting therefrom be reimbursed to the Office of the Commissioner or such other Baseball entity by such non-complying League or Club (on its own behalf and including, without limitation, on behalf of its owners, officers, directors and employees).  Nothing herein shall be construed to limit any rights of indemnity which the Major Leagues or their constituent Clubs may have against any Club.


*  *  *


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has caused this Agreement to be executed in triplicate in its name by its duly authorized officer the day and year first above written.

Signed by:





Signed by:

The NATIONAL LEAGUE of 


The AMERICAN LEAGUE of

PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL


PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL

CLUBS and each of its fourteen


CLUBS and each of its fourteen

(14) constituent Member Clubs.


(14) constituent Member Clubs.


[END OF EXCERPT]
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All facts presented in this exam, while they may or may not be modeled after actual fact situations, are purely hypothetical and they do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.

QUESTION 1. 
Former tennis star Ollie Overhead is the owner of the NationsBank Richmond Tennis Classic, an annual men's professional tennis event in the ATP Tour -- one of the ten "Championship Series" events of the 75-event ATP Tour.  The ten "Championship Series" events are the top ATP Tour events, other than the annual year-ending ATP Finals.  In addition to the 75-event tour, the ATP Tour sanctions about 100 "satellite" and "challenger" tournaments for players ranked below 100 in the World.  Ollie Overhead has come to see you, to ask your advice about the legal implications of some new rules enacted by the Board of the ATP Tour.  The new rules are as follows:


1.
The ATP Tour has created exclusive tour sponsors in the following ten categories:



a.
Official Automobile Manufacturer



b.
Official Hotel Chain



c.
Official Publication



d.
Official Airline



e.
Official Alcoholic Beverage



f.
Official Non-Alcoholic Beverage



g.
Official Clothing Manufacturer



h.
Official Tennis Racket Manufacturer



i.
Official Tennis Ball Manufacturer



j.
Official Tennis Shoe Manufacturer



The tour will guarantee the sponsor in each of these categories exclusivity at all ATP Tour events.  



As a result of this rule, the Richmond event, which used to receive about $500,000 per year from sponsors in these categories, will be out $500,000.  The ATP Tour says it will use the additional funds to promote tennis and some funds will be distributed to the individual ATP Tour events.  Ollie Overhead estimates that he will receive $100,000 from the ATP Tour as a result of this new initiative.


2.
Starting in 1997, the ATP Tour will not include any tournaments owned by individuals or any for-profit partnership or corporation or other for-profit organizations.  



This second rule would require Overhead to sell his tournament to a not-for-profit organization or to operate it as a non-ATP Tour event.  It will also require many other owners of ATP Tour tournaments to sell their events to not-for-profit organizations.  Overhead does not want to sell his tournament and he is concerned that with a great number of events up for sale with the same deadline, it will be a buyer's market and he may not get fair market value for his event.  He is also worried that there may be few not-for-profit organizations with the interest and ability to run a tennis tournament in Richmond, so he doubts that there will be many prospective purchasers.  Of course, he could sell to someone contemplating moving the tournament to another city, but he is not certain whether the ATP Tour would approve a relocation of the event, and that uncertainty may reduce the amount anyone is willing to pay to buy the event.



The ATP Tour Board consists of three player representatives (one current player and two former players) and three tournament representatives:  one for Europe, one for North America, and one for the Rest of the World.  The European tournament representative runs the Italian Open for the Italian Tennis Federation, the not-for-profit organization that is the national governing body for tennis in Italy.  The Rest of the World tournament representative runs tournaments in Brisbane and Sydney, Australia, which are owned by a not-for-profit organization.  The North American tournament representative operates a tournament in California that may soon be sold to the Southern California Tennis Association.  Overhead tells you that despite a tremendous amount of objection from ATP Tour tournaments that are owned by "for profits," the ATP Board vote was 6-0 in favor of the new proposed rules.



Overhead and several other independent owners of ATP Tour events threatened to file antitrust claims against the ATP Tour, but the Tour's response was the following:


1.
We do not have market power because the International Tennis Federation and its member national federations run the four Grand Slam events in tennis (French Open, Wimbledon, U.S. Open, and Australian Open), the Grand Slam Cup (eight man $2 million event in November), and the Davis Cup (competition among teams representing different countries).  If you do not like our rules, run your events outside of our tour.


2.
We need to have a single exclusive ATP Tour sponsor in each of the sponsor categories to create a tour identity -- we want fans and consumers to see that all of these tournaments around the World are part of a single, unified tour.  


3.
We are concerned that some owners of ATP Tour events have recently experienced financial problems, forcing them to sell their events, thereby often disrupting the quality of the event or forcing relocation of the event.  In addition, with for-profit ownership, a single individual or a single business could buy a number of ATP Tour events, and might then be in a position to take those events, leave our tour, and set-up a competing tour.  It is our experience that events owned by not-for-profit organizations (e.g., the Washington, D.C. tournament owned by the Washington Area Tennis Patrons Foundation and the tournaments owned by national federations around the World) are more stable, and more consistent, and are seldom relocated.  Therefore, we will require not-for-profit ownership of all ATP Tour events.

ASSIGNMENT:
Ollie Overhead has asked you to send him a memorandum, discussing claims he may have because of the new rules.  He has asked you to describe, discuss, and analyze his best legal theories, defenses the defendant(s) would be likely to raise (including, but not limited to, the initial ATP Tour arguments referenced above), and the likely judicial decisions about those issues.  Finally, he wants any strategic recommendations you believe he should follow, an assessment of the likelihood he will succeed on the merits, and the relief, if any, that he is likely to get from a court.
QUESTION 2.  Andy Athlete was a very tall (6' 10") superstar at the University of the West Coast ("UWC").  He was a star wide receiver on the football team, a power forward on the basketball team, and the leading spiker in UWC's conference (the Left Coast Conference) in volleyball, graduating in May, 1995.  The National Football League's Jacksonville Jaguars and the National Basketball Association's Washington Bullets each picked Athlete in the first round of their respective drafts.  After negotiations with the Jaguars and the Bullets, Athlete signed a three-year NBA uniform player contract, which includes the following provisions:



2.  The Club agrees to pay the Player for rendering the services described herein the compensation provided for in Exhibit 1 hereto (less all amounts required to be withheld by federal, state, and local authorities). . . 



9.
The Player represents and agrees that he has extraordinary and unique skill and ability as a basketball player, that the services to be rendered by him hereunder cannot be replaced or the loss thereof adequately compensated for in money damages, and that any breach by the Player of this contract will cause irreparable injury to the Club and to its assignees.  Therefore, it is agreed that in the event it is alleged by the Club that the Player is playing, attempting or threatening to play, or negotiating for the purpose of playing, during the term of this contract, for any other person, firm, corporation or organization, the Club and its assignees (in addition to any other remedies that may be available to them judicially or by way of arbitration) shall have the right to obtain from any court or arbitrator having jurisdiction, such equitable relief as may be appropriate, including a decree enjoining the Player from any further such breach of this contract, and enjoining the Player from playing for any other person, firm, corporation or organization during the term of this contract. . . . 



17.
The Player and the Club acknowledge and agree that the Player's participation in other sports may impair or destroy his ability and skill as a basketball player.  The Player and the Club recognize and agree that the Player's participation in basketball out of season may result in injury to him.  Accordingly, the Player agrees that he will not engage in sports endangering his health or safety (including, but not limited to, professional boxing or wrestling, motorcycling, moped-riding, auto racing, sky-diving and hang-gliding); and that, except with the written consent of the Club, he will not engage in any game or exhibition of basketball, football, baseball, hockey, lacrosse or other athletic sport, under penalty of such fine and suspension as may be imposed by the Club and/or the Commissioner of the NBA.  Nothing contained herein shall be intended to require the Player to obtain the written consent of the Club in order to enable the Player to participate in, as an amateur, the sport of golf, tennis, handball, swimming, hiking, softball or volleyball.

Exhibit 1 to the contract provides:




Season




Compensation 




1995-96



$3.0 million




1996-97



$3.5 million




1997-98



$4.0 million

Description of Bonus 

Amount

Date of Payment
Signing Bonus


$3.0 million  

Date Athlete Signs Contract



Athlete had a tough rookie season in 1995-96.  In the first sixty-two games of the season, Athlete had 15 points, 8 rebounds, 1.5 blocked shots, and 4 assists per game.  His shooting percentage was 54% from the field and 84% from the foul line.  However, at the end of the season he missed ten games because of injuries, then he only saw limited action in the last ten games of the regular season because he was recovering from his injuries, and the Bullets did not qualify for the play-offs.  The fans were tough on Athlete at the end of the season.  



Athlete's injuries the last twenty games of the season took a toll on him.  An 82-game season was much tougher than he had expected, and he was starting to lose his love of the game.  Losing like he had experienced on the Bullets was new to him, he had never before been jeered or booed by fans, and he felt he was playing for the money, not for the enjoyment of the sport.  



On May 15, 1996 Athlete called a press conference to announce his retirement from the NBA.  Representatives of the Bullets and the NBA were shocked, said they were very sorry that Athlete had decided to retire, said they hoped he would change his mind (the same way that Michael Jordan had "seen the light"), said they hoped he would regain his love of the game, and wished him all of the best in whatever he decided to do.



On June 1, 1996, Athlete announced the following:


1.
He had signed a two-year contract to play wide receiver for the Jacksonville Jaguars, for a $1 million signing bonus, $1 million for the 1996 season, and $1.5 million for the 1997 season.


2.
He had been selected to play for the United States National Volleyball Team -- both six-man and beach volleyball -- in the 1996 Summer Olympic Games.


3.
He had signed a two year contract to play for the National Volleyball League ("NVL"), starting with the league's inaugural 1996-97 season.  The NVL season runs from November to May, but the NVL and the Jaguars had worked out a deal whereby Athlete would only report to the NVL after the Jaguars' season is over each year.  The NVL contract paid Athlete a $100,000 signing bonus and $5,000 per game that he plays each 40-game season.

In the press conference, Athlete explained that he preferred the NFL's 16-game season and the 25 NVL games that would be left each year after the Jaguars' season ended (even less if the Jaguars made it to the NFL play-offs).



One week after hearing of Athlete's announcements, Bullets owner Abe Pollin held a press conference to announce that the Bullets had filed suit against Athlete, seeking an injunction against his playing (1) for the United States National Volleyball Team, for which he would be paid $50,000, (2) for the Jaguars, for which he would receive $2 million during his first season (counting the signing bonus), and (3) for the NVL, for which he would receive about $225,000.  



The Bullets' lawsuit alleges that Athlete would receive about $2,275,000 for playing sports during 1996-97, a year that he would be breaching his NBA contract.  The Complaint also alleges, based upon information and belief, that Athlete began negotiating these deals before he announced his "retirement" from the NBA, and the "retirement" press conference was choreographed to hide Athlete's true plans.  The Bullets' lawsuit also seeks the return of $2 million (2/3 of the $3 million signing bonus) that the Bullets paid to Athlete, on the theory that Athlete played 1/3 of the contract term and should only keep 1/3 of the signing bonus.  ASSIGNMENT:  You are a law clerk for a U.S. District Judge.  The case was just filed today, and only the Complaint has been filed.  The Judge has asked you to prepare a memorandum, setting out the Bullets' likely arguments, Athlete's likely responses, questions you believe the Judge will need to ask and information he should seek, and your preliminary views about how the Judge should rule.


END OF MAY, 1995 EXAM
__________________________________________________


EXAMINATION IN SPORTS & THE LAW


2 HOURS











December, 1995

FACT PATTERN FOR BOTH QUESTION ONE AND QUESTION TWO


All facts presented in this exam, while they may or may not be modeled after actual fact situations, are purely hypothetical and they do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.



The National Tennis League ("NTL") is a team tennis league that runs from November through April with twelve teams in cities across the United States.  Each team is separately owned, and the League is an unincorporated association that functions in basically the same manner as Major League Baseball ("MLB"), the National Basketball Association ("NBA"), the National Football League ("NFL"), and the National Hockey League ("NHL").  The teams are members of the League; national television and sponsorship revenue is shared equally among the teams; the owners select the NTL Commissioner -- Mr. Iron Fist, and he functions in much the same manner as the Commissioner of the other sports leagues.  NTL teams have some revenue sharing, but local team costs are not shared at all.



Each team has ten players who sign standard player contracts that, among other things, require the players during the term of their contracts to refrain from playing tennis for any other team or any tennis tour or in any tennis event during the NTL's six-month season.  For the past few years, a labor organization, the National Tennis Players Association ("NTPA" or the "union"), has represented all NTL players.



During recent collective bargaining agreement ("CBA" or "union contract") negotiations, talks broke down -- primarily over the union's request for unrestricted free agency.  The owners were insisting upon continuing numerous existing restrictions on free agency and adding limitations.  The NTPA called a strike.  The strike lasted for several weeks, and hurt both the NTL owners, who lost considerable sums of money at the box office, and the NTPA, whose members lost their salaries during the strike.  Yet, most observers believed the union was the bigger loser.  It became apparent that a prompt settlement was necessary.  



The NTPA contacted the NTL and informed it that the players were prepared to accept the NTL's proposals.  The strike was called off, the players returned to their teams, and "regular season" play resumed.  The parties scheduled a negotiating session to "finalize the CBA and fine-tune minor language problems."  This session was scheduled to be held at a date two weeks after the resumption of play.



As part of an economic analysis undertaken to assess the loss of revenue occasioned by the strike, marketing experts advised NTL owners that the league was in considerable financial trouble because of the strike and because tennis fans believed tennis was too boring and there was a need to make tennis more exciting.  In particular, the marketing analysts recommended that NTL attire and equipment be tailored to make the sport more exciting -- wild colored uniforms and new, larger "double-strung" rackets that allowed players to serve and hit the ball harder and make the ball travel faster.  The NTL could also make very lucrative deals with companies like Nike, Reebok, and Starter, each of which would design uniforms for four teams and then market copies of those official uniforms to the public.  



As a result, team owner Peter Powerful ("Powerful"), contacted the NTPA president Oscar Organizer ("Organizer"), and asked for the union's cooperation in helping to resolve some of the economic problems plaguing the league.  He stated, "look, it would really be helpful if your union and the NTL could present a united front by including these equipment changes and uniform changes into the imminent CBA."  Organizer replied, "I don't like the ideas, and I do not think most of my membership will want any part of it -- many of the players have not tried or do not like the new double-strung rackets and some are not comfortable with wild uniforms."  



Notwithstanding Organizer's protest, the NTL, as the next negotiating session scheduled to finalize the CBA, informed the NTPA that the deal was off unless the NTPA agreed to accept the following language:  



1.  All NTL players will wear only official NTL tennis attire while participating in any league matches.  This attire may bear a logo reflecting team affiliation or a commercial affiliation (e.g., Nike, Reebok, or Starter) (at the sole discretion of the NTL).  No other exceptions will be tolerated, including the wearing of any logo reflecting the players' endorsement of any product.



2.  All NTL players will use double-strung rackets that meet standards set by the NTL.  No other rackets will be permitted.  The NTL will insure that at least two manufacturers' double-strung rackets that meet the NTL standards will be made available to team members."



The NTPA said it was troubled by the last minute alteration in the owners' proposals, but added that it would perhaps consider the equipment/uniform demands if the owners would reconsider their outright rejection of the NTPA's earlier request for unrestricted free agency.  The NTL absolutely refused to reconsider and demanded that the NTPA accept the language regarding equipment and uniforms.  





During the bargaining session, the team owners offered no reason for their insistence on their new proposals or for their outright refusal to reconsider the free agency issues (except to say and repeat, "We must be economically viable").  



Shortly before the next negotiating session, NTL team owner Powerful called union president Organizer aside and whispered, "You had better come to an agreement and fast.  I have learned a petition is circulating and more than 60% of the players do not want to be represented by you any longer.  Apparently they are as fed up with you as my colleagues.  There is no CBA in effect and nothing to stop the players from filing a decertification petition and trying to vote you out."  He added, "Look, I have it on good authority that a large number of players may prefer to be represented by a new union."  So, let's be honest.  We both need this deal."  Organizer replied simply, "I get your message."



In any event, it had become obvious that the NTL had no intention of acceding to the players' request for unrestricted free agency, nor would the NTL sign an agreement without the equipment and uniform restriction language.  Accordingly, the NTPA, with obvious reluctance, signed a CBA with the equipment and uniform restriction provisions, and without any change in the owners' hard-line free agency position.



Several months later, an NTL player, Chris Control, was accused of playing with a prohibited racket.  Control's racket was a double-strung racket manufactured by Sports, Inc. and included a device that Sports, Inc. advertised would give a player more control.  The racket, known as "Controlled Fury," had been designed by renowned racket designer Donna Designer ("Designer"). Sports, Inc.'s entire advertising campaign for "Controlled Fury" centered around Chris Control and his success with the racket in NTL matches.   



NTL Commissioner Fist immediately began an investigation and advised Control he would be suspended pending a hearing to be held in the Commissioner's office within thirty (30) days.  Control was told that if were found guilty of violating the equipment restriction rules, he would be suspended for three months to one year.  



When Control informed the Commissioner that he would appear at the hearing and that he would present expert testimony from Designer, the racket designer, regarding its compliance with the NTL standards, Commissioner Fist said, "Bring whomever you want, but Designer is a crackpot and has been a laughing stock of the tennis community for years.  Good luck having her convince me this racquet is within specifications.  Remember, this isn't a federal case, it's just a little hearing.  "Why can't you just play tennis by our rules and quit rocking the boat?"



Immediately after Control was suspended, but prior to his hearing, he contacted a prominent official on the ATP Tour about the possibility of participating in the tour on a temporary basis or in some exhibition matches.  He was told he would be welcome to play in the ATP MidWinters Series, which consisted of four consecutive weekends of play in Germany, Austria, Italy and the United States -- aired on television Worldwide.  Control signed a contract with the 1995 Title Sponsor of the Midwinter Series -- Mercedes-Benz.  During the negotiations with the ATP and Mercedes-Benz, Control said, "I am just anxious to play in any event that's being run by you people at Mercedes-Benz; I am sure that you will run a first class tournament."  Among other things, the contract called for a $20,000 bonus to be paid in advance, and prohibited him from playing in any other tennis events or participating in any tennis event in any capacity during the term of the agreement (four weeks).  It also called for him to receive a 1996 Mercedes-Benz to drive for an entire year.  Within a few days, however, Mercedes-Benz decided not to renew its sponsorship for 1996 and assigned its rights to the ATP, which made a deal with another sponsor, R. J. Reynolds Tobacco, Co., for it to be the 1996 ATP/R.J. Reynolds Midwinter Series.  Control, who had engaged in numerous public service messages opposing smoking, was dismayed.  His anger was exacerbated when the new sponsor informed him that it "obviously would not be providing him a Mercedes, but that he could have all the cigarettes and snack food (R.J. Reynolds owned Nabisco) he desired for one year."  He immediately repudiated his contract with Mercedes/Reynolds and signed a contract to play a series of one-on-one exhibitions at various clubs throughout the United States beginning at about the same time as the MidWinters series.



R. J. Reynolds and the ATP Tour promptly filed an injunction action, seeking to prevent Control from playing in these exhibitions and to require him to participate in the Midwinters Series.  



The NTL promptly filed an injunction action, seeking to prevent Control from playing in these exhibitions and to prevent him from participating in the ATP Midwinters Series.



Control immediately comes to you for advice.

QUESTION 1A.
Control wants advice about a possible antitrust claim against the NTL, challenging Rule #2 -- the double-strung racket rule -- and its enforcement as violative of Section 1 of the Sherman Act.  Please advise Control of the issues and his options and your assessment of Control's likelihood of success.  What strategy suggestions do you have for Control, if any?  (Approximately 45 minutes)

QUESTION 1B.
If the CBA incorporating the equipment and uniform restrictions had expired prior to the discipline imposed upon Control, and negotiations for a new agreement were ongoing at the time of his suspension and subsequent lawsuit, how would your analysis in Question 1(A) be affected?  You may assume that during these negotiations the NTPA again was opposing the inclusion of the equipment and uniform restriction language in the CBA.  (Approximately 10 minutes)

QUESTION 2A.
Control wants advice about defending the suit filed by the ATP Tour and R.J. Reynolds.  He has asked you to describe, discuss, and analyze the plaintiffs' claims, his best legal theories in response, defenses he should raise and arguments he should make, and the likely judicial decisions about those issues.  Finally, he wants any strategic recommendations you believe he should follow, an assessment of the likelihood he will succeed on the merits, and the relief, if any, that the plaintiffs or he are likely to get from a court.  (Approx 35 minutes).
QUESTION 2B.
Control wants advice about defending the suit filed by the NTL.  He has asked you to describe, discuss, and analyze the plaintiff's claims, his best legal theories in response, defenses he should raise and arguments he should make, and the likely judicial decisions about those issues.  Finally, he wants any strategic recommendations you believe he should follow, an assessment of the likelihood he will succeed on the merits, and the relief, if any, that the NTL or he is likely to get from a court.  (Approx 20 minutes).


END OF DECEMBER, 1995 EXAM

______________________________________

EXAMINATION IN SPORTS & THE LAW
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May, 1994



All facts presented in this exam, while they may or may not be modeled after actual fact situations, are purely hypothetical and they do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.

QUESTION 1.  The National Football League (“NFL”) and the National Football League Players Association (“NFLPA”) finalized a new collective bargaining agreement (“CBA”) on May 6, 1993.  That agreement provides for a salary cap on the amounts NFL teams can pay players and a rookie cap that severely limits the amounts NFL teams can pay first year players.  The 1994 cap of $34.608 million per team has already caused substantial decreases in player salaries from the amounts paid in 1993.  Many teams have released players or told players they will be released if they do not agree to substantial salary reductions.  Many NFL players and recent college graduates are very dissatisfied with the salary situation in the NFL.



In May 1994, the formation of a new football league, the “A League” was announced.  The A League’s investors include Anheuser-Busch, Disney, Federal Express, PepsiCo, and other publicly-held corporations that are not permitted (by the NFL rules and regulations) to own NFL teams.  CBS, having lost the bidding for NFL broadcast rights, will broadcast A League games. 



The A League Players Association was formed and negotiated a collective bargaining agreement with the A League that does not contain any salary cap or rookie cap.  In June, the A League began to sign new college graduates who were top NFL draft picks and former NFL players who believe the salary cap has unfairly limited the amount they would otherwise negotiate from NFL teams.  Dissatisfied players left the NFL to go to the A League, and NFL players have been highly-critical of the NFLPA for agreeing to the salary cap and the rookie cap.



Following the announcement of the formation of the A League and the signing of a number of NFL free agents to A League contracts, in July, 1994 NFL Commissioner Paul Tagliabue met with NFLPA Executive Director Gene Upshaw and reached an agreement to modify the NFL-NFLPA Collective Bargaining Agreement.  The modifications were as follows.  Free agency for all veteran players was restricted in the following way:



Paragraph 19.7  Veteran Free Agency – Right of First Refusal.  The provisions concerning free agency are modified to provide that all players who become free agents will be subject to a right of first refusal.  NFL players who are free agents can go out and negotiate their best offer from a new team, that offer must be submitted in writing to their existing team, and their existing team can re-sign them if it gives written notice within ten days that it will match all of the financial terms of the offer submitted.  

In return, the salary cap and the rookie cap were liberalized:



Paragraph 24.11  Salary Cap and Rookie Cap Exceptions.  There shall be one exception to the salary cap and the rookie cap provisions.  NFL teams shall be permitted to exceed the salary cap and the rookie cap to the extent that they are matching any written offer to their own veteran free agents pursuant to Paragraph 19.7, above, or any bona-fide written offer to any rookie or non-NFL player. 

Subsequent to the announcement of these amendments, Commissioner Tagliabue held a press conference, at which he announced that in order to maintain the NFL as the highest quality football league in the World, NFL teams would be matching all A League offers to top NFL Players and top rookie prospects.  In response to a question about whether some of the less successful teams in the NFL could afford to match the offers being made by A League teams, Commissioner Tagliabue said the league office would provide additional financial assistance to any NFL team that was forced to spend more than its fair share for player salaries because of the cost of matching A League offers.

ASSIGNMENT:
The A League Board of Directors has contacted you and asked you to send them a memorandum, discussing any claims the A League may have against the NFL because of the new modifications to the free agency and salary and rookie cap provisions.  They have asked you to describe, discuss, and analyze their best legal theories, all the defenses the defendant(s) would be likely to raise, and the likely judicial decisions about all of those issues.  Finally, they want you to make any strategic recommendations you believe they should follow and give them an assessment of the likelihood that they will succeed on the merits, and the relief, if any, they are likely to get from a court.

QUESTION 2. – NFL Constitution and By-Laws excerpts are attached.



Following the creation of the A League described in Question 1, Jerry Jones, the owner of the two-time NFL Champion Dallas Cowboys, entered into an agreement with Michael Eisner, the President of the Orlando Disney Beasts, a team in the A League.  The Beasts had signed a number of top young players to contracts, but they had been unable to sign any big-name veteran NFL players.  The Cowboys traded their back-up Quarterback, Bernie Kosar, and their Wide Receiver, Alvin Harper, with whom they were having salary disputes, to the Beasts in return for six top young players.  Kosar and Harper agreed to the trades and the agreement was in compliance with all terms of the collective bargaining agreement.  The Beasts and Cowboys kept the trades secret, pending approval by the Commissioner.  



Upon advice of counsel that the trades were in compliance with all NFL rules, and based on his view that the trades would strengthen the NFL by bringing in top young players while giving away players who are past their prime, NFL Commissioner Paul Tagliabue approved the assignment.  Immediately after the Commissioner’s approval of the trade, the Beasts held a press conference and announced that the acquisition of Kosar and Harper was a major coup for the A League, and demonstrated that the quality of A League players would be at least comparable to (if not better than) the quality of players in the NFL.  At that press conference the Beasts announced that they had agreed to substantial increases in the 1994 contracts for both Kosar and Harper.  



Various NFL owners were very critical of the Cowboys’ decision to trade away current top stars of the NFL.  Those owners contacted Tagliabue and told him that his approval of the trade was likely to lead to additional trades of marquis NFL players to the A League.  After conferring with those owners, Tagliabue called a press conference and announced that he had invalidated the Cowboys’ assignment of Kosar’s and Harper’s contracts to the Beasts, and that he would fine Kosar and Harper if they refused to honor their contracts with the Cowboys. 



Tagliabue stated that although the assignments complied with the collective bargaining agreement and the NFL Constitution and By-Laws, it would be detrimental to the best interests of football for popular players, the players who draw fans to the games and to the broadcasts, to be traded to another football league.  Tagliabue acknowledged that the trades would strengthen, not weaken, the Cowboys, in the long run, but said the Cowboys had not adequately considered the overall detrimental effects on the league because Jerry Jones and the Cowboys were too busy focusing on gaining a competitive advantage on the field.  As a penalty to the Cowboys for engaging in conduct detrimental to the National Football League, Tagliabue fined the Cowboys $50,000 and ordered them to pay Kosar and Harper the increased amounts agreed to by the Beasts, with such fines and increases not to count against the salary cap, so other players would not be adversely affected.  With their NFL salaries now enhanced, Kosar and Harper were happy to return to the Cowboys.



The Cowboys sued the Commissioner in federal court (diversity jurisdiction), seeking to overturn his order.  The Beasts sued Kosar, Harper, and the Cowboys in federal court, seeking a declaratory judgment that the Beasts’ contracts with Kosar and Harper are valid and enforceable, and seeking an injunction against Kosar and Harper playing for the Cowboys. 

ASSIGNMENT:
You are the law clerk to the federal judge who will be hearing these cases.  Please draft a memorandum for him, explaining the claims, the defenses, and the analysis, and recommending what he should decide.  YOUR CO-CLERK IS ADDRESSING ANY ANTITRUST CLAIMS – LIMIT YOUR ANALYSIS TO NON-ANTITRUST ISSUES AND DO NOT DISCUSS THE ISSUES PRESENTED BY QUESTION 1 IN ANSWERING THIS QUESTION.


EXCERPTS FROM THE NFL CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS
ARTICLE VIII – COMMISSIONER
Employment

8.1
The League shall select and employ a person of unquestioned integrity to serve as Commissioner of the League, and shall determine the period and fix the compensation of his employment. . . .


*   *   *

Jurisdiction to Resolve Disputes

8.3
The Commissioner shall have full, complete, and final jurisdiction and authority to arbitrate:



(A)
Any dispute involving two or more members of the League, or involving two or more holders of an ownership interest in a member club of the League, certified to him by any of the disputants.



(B)
Any dispute between any player, coach and/or other employee of any member of the League (or any combination thereof) and any member club or clubs.


*   *   *



(E)
Any dispute involving a member or members in the League, or any players or employees of the members or the League, or any combination thereof, that in the opinion of the Commissioner constitutes conduct detrimental to the best interests of the League or professional football.


*   *   *

Disciplinary Powers of the Commissioner
    8.13
(A)
Whenever the Commissioner, after notice and hearing, decides that an owner, shareholder, partner or holder of an interest in a member club, or any player, coach, officer, director or employee thereof, or an officer, employee or official of the League has either violated the Constitution and Bylaws of the League, or has been or is guilty of conduct detrimental to the welfare of the League or professional football, then the Commissioner shall have complete authority to:




(1)
Suspend and/or fine such person in an amount not in excess of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000), and/or




(2)
Cancel any contract or agreement of such person with the League or with any member thereof.


*   *   *




(4)
In cases involving a violation affecting the competitive aspects of the game, award selection choices, and/or deprive the offending club of a selection choice or choices, and/or cancel any contract or agreement of such person with the League or with any member thereof, and/or fine the offending club in an amount not in excess of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) despite the provisions of sub-section (1) herein.


*   *   *

Miscellaneous Powers of the Commissioner

*   *   *

    8.14
(B)
The Commissioner shall have the power to hear and determine disputes between clubs in respect to any matter certified to by him by either or both of the clubs; he shall also have the power to settle and determine any controversy between two clubs which, in the opinion of the Commissioner, involves or affects League policy.


*   *   *


ARTICLE XVI


ASSIGNMENT OF PLAYER CONTRACTS


*   *   *

Approval by the Commissioner
    16.8
(A)
No sale or trade by a club shall be binding unless approved by the Commissioner.  Immediately following such approval, the Commissioner shall notify all clubs of such trade or sale.

________________________________________________

EXAMINATION IN SPORTS & THE LAW

2 HOURS





December, 1993



All facts presented in this exam, while they may or may not be modeled after actual fact situations, are purely hypothetical and they do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.

QUESTION 1.  For the following question, you may refer to the Uniform Player's Contract, which is attached:



a)
Leon "Neon" Jackson is an All-American in two sports:  baseball and football.  Leon has been drafted by both the N.Y. Giants and the N.Y. Yankees.  He wants to play both professional baseball with the Yankees and professional football with the Giants.  He hires you to represent him in his negotiations with both teams.  What changes in the standard player contract would you seek to negotiate on behalf of Leon?


(20 minutes)



b)
Following extensive negotiations, Brett Coleman, a star pitcher, and the Baltimore Orioles agree on a contract for $5 million per year for 3 years.  The contract is guaranteed to the extent that:  the Orioles would have to pay Coleman even if he "does not exhibit sufficient skill to make the Club or if he is injured."  The agreement also provides under the Special Covenants section for a bonus which reads as follows:


Signing Bonus


"Upon the execution of this contract, the player shall be entitled to receive a signing bonus of $100,000 payable within 72 hours."

The contract provides for approval by the League President as follows:



"This contract or any supplement hereto shall not be valid unless and until approved by the League President."



Following the press conference announcing the deal, Coleman and the Orioles sign the contract.  The Orioles send the contract to the League President in New York by overnight mail.  That same night Coleman goes out with a few of his new teammates and the Orioles manager to celebrate at a bar in Baltimore.  Coleman becomes drunk and gets into a fight with the bouncer at the bar.  Coleman injures his arm in the fight.  A medical examination at the hospital reveals that he has suffered a career-ending injury.  When the Orioles learn of the injury, they announce that the deal is off.  The Orioles call the League President and ask him to withhold his approval of the contract.  The Orioles refuse to pay the signing bonus.



What arguments would you make to support the Orioles' refusal to pay the bonus and terminate the contract?  Evaluate those arguments.  Would Brett be entitled to workers' compensation?  Why so or why not?


(35 minutes)

QUESTION 2.  This question about professional football has two parts.  


Question 2.A.


In November, 1989, the United States Court of Appeals for the Eighth Circuit held that the National Football League's ("NFL") non-statutory labor exemption had not yet expired, even though the most recent collective bargaining agreement between the NFL and the NFL Players Association ("NFLPA") had expired in 1987.  Following that decision, the NFLPA disclaimed interest in representing NFL players in collective bargaining and a majority of NFL players signed a petition terminating the NFLPA's position as their collective bargaining representative.  Then, in McNeil v. NFL, 764 F. Supp. 1351, 1357 n.6 (D. Minn. 1991), United States District Judge David Doty held that the NFL's labor exemption had terminated.



On September 10, 1992, a jury returned its verdict in McNeil, and held the NFL's Plan B an unreasonable restraint of trade, violative of Section 1 of the Sherman Act.  In November, 1992, Judge Doty was considering what injunctive relief to order in the McNeil case and in the White case, a class action primarily seeking injunctive relief.  The plaintiffs in McNeil and White were asking Judge Doty to enjoin the NFL from enforcing Plan B or any similar plan.




Commissioner Tagliabue has retained you to give him advice about the following "Plan C" which has been proposed by a few NFL owners:




All NFL players would become unrestricted free agents and all NFL teams would reduce their rosters from 55 players to 33 players.



The owners proposing Plan C believe it is justified because the higher costs of free agent players would be offset by reduced costs related to smaller rosters.  They believe Plan C would improve competitive balance by reducing the number of top players who could be stockpiled by the richer owners or the owners with teams in more desirable cities.



Commissioner Tagliabue has asked you to tell him if NFL players could attack Plan C under the antitrust laws, to explain the players' best antitrust arguments, and to give him your assessment of which side would win and why.  

(25 minutes)


Question 2.B.


In May, 1993, the NFL and the NFLPA negotiated a seven-year collective bargaining agreement that contains the following provision:




CFL Rule:  No Club may sign any player who in the same year has been under contract to a Canadian Football League ("CFL") club at the end of that CFL club's season (regular season or post-season, whichever is applicable).



The Canadian Football League season runs from July to November.  Analyze the CFL provision under the antitrust laws.  Make the arguments for and against the legality of the rule.  Which side has the better argument?  Would it change the analysis if the CFL played from April to August?  

(30 minutes)

______________________________________________________


EXAMINATION IN SPORTS & THE LAW

2 HOURS










December, 1992



All facts presented in this exam, while they may or may not be modeled after actual fact situations, are purely hypothetical and they do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.

QUESTION 1.  (Portions of the Major League agreement are attached for use in answering Question 1.)  



A new Commissioner of Baseball has been elected unanimously.  He is hired pursuant to the attached provisions of the Major League Agreement, which are unchanged.  Shortly after taking office, the Commissioner is visited by a group of three Club owners who are greatly concerned about the financial condition of Major League Baseball in general and their franchises in particular.  These club owners have franchises in “small market” areas and they have been unable to procure substantial local cable television contracts.  They complain to the Commissioner that unless the “big market” clubs share their cable revenues, their “small market” franchises will go bankrupt within six months and the reputation and future of Major League Baseball will be ruined.  



The Commissioner, who was previously the owner of a “small market” franchise, is sympathetic to their plight.  After studying the problem for several months, the Commissioner Issues a directive to all the major league clubs that beginning January 1, 1993 all franchises’ local cable revenues will be shared equally among the 28 major league teams.  He announces that this revenue sharing is in the “best interests” of baseball.



The owners of the “big market” clubs who stand to lose the most from the Commissioner’s decision are outraged.  They are particularly upset because the Major League Agreement provides as follows:

“The vote of ¾ (21) of all Major League Clubs (28) shall be required for the approval of any provision binding on both Leagues affecting the sharing of Member Clubs of revenues from any source.”

The Commissioner’s decision was made without a vote.



The owners of the “big market” clubs call for the Commissioner to resign.  He refuses to do so.  These owners threaten to fire him and have announced that they will refuse to comply with the revenue sharing directive.  The Commissioner says he will not back down. 



Each of the relevant constituencies:  The Commissioner, the “small market” Clubs, and the “big market” Clubs, consult their attorneys.  



In light of the cases that we have read, the history of the Commissioner’s office, and the relationship among the league owners, analyze the legal rights and remedies of each.  What advice would you give to each?

QUESTION 2.  The major league baseball owners were under pressure to expand the number of major league teams and to increase their foreign revenues.  In addition, their collective bargaining agreement came to an end without significant progress in their discussions with the union.  The owners developed a new strategy.  The owners of the thirty major league teams created a replacement league – the League of American Baseball Organized for Replacement (“LABOR”) – ten replacement teams, each replacement team controlled by three major league teams.  The thirty major league owners agreed to share all LABOR revenues, expenses, and profits equally.  The replacement teams were created in the following cities:




Washington, D.C.




Tampa Bay, Florida




Phoenix, Arizona




Salt Lake City, Utah




New Orleans, Louisiana




Charlotte, North Carolina




Frankfurt, Germany




Paris, France




London, England




Rome, Italy

The strategy was to achieve the following goals:



1.
Expand American Baseball into Europe.



2.
Increase sales and value of Major League Baseball licensed products in Europe.



3.
Increase sales and value of Major League Baseball broadcast rights in Europe.



4.
Have games for the major leagues’ television networks to broadcast if the Major League Baseball Players Association (“MLBPA”) strikes.



5.
Put pressure on the MLBPA to be more conciliatory in collective bargaining negotiations.

The major league owners agreed to stop signing the rookies, draft picks, and minor league players to major league contracts, instead signing them to contracts with the LABOR teams.



With encouragement from the owners, the LABOR players formed a players association and negotiated a collective bargaining agreement with the owners.  Included in the LABOR collective bargaining agreement after bona fide good faith negotiations were the following provisions:



1.
All LABOR players receive $100,000 per season plus bonuses based on team performance.



2.
To prevent injuries suffered in non-LABOR games or exhibitions, all LABOR players agreed not to play in any non-LABOR baseball game or exhibition without permission of the Commissioner of the LABOR.  The penalty for playing in any non-LABOR baseball game or exhibition without Commissioner approval was left to the LABOR commissioner’s discretion, but the possible penalties included a suspension for up to two years from the LABOR and Major League Baseball and/or forfeiture of all payments to the player for playing in the non-LABOR game or exhibition.



The members of the MLBPA filed a class action, suing all thirty major league baseball owners under Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act, challenging the formation of the LABOR and the two provisions of the LABOR collective bargaining agreement described above.



The major league owners contend that (1) the players lack standing and did not suffer antitrust injury, and (2) contend that the conduct and agreements do not violate the antitrust laws.



You have been retained by a multi-millionaire, Pamela Purchaser, who is considering buying the Baltimore Orioles.  She wants to know all of the antitrust issues, including the arguments to be made by both sides, and she wants to know your prediction about the likely outcome.  Please prepare an organized memorandum answering her questions.

_______________________________________________

EXAMINATION IN SPORTS & THE LAW
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Spring 1992



All facts presented in this exam, while they may or may not be modeled after actual fact situations, are purely hypothetical and they do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.

QUESTION NO. 1


Peter Puck, a National Hockey League all-star with the Washington Capitals, became a free agent in the Summer of 1989 after six years in the NHL.  The Capitals were having financial problems, so they were not willing to match the offers Puck received from other teams.  Puck was originally from the Los Angeles area, his wife wanted to pursue her acting and modeling career in L.A., and they both were interested in raising their three grade school-age children in California, so in the Summer of 1989 Puck signed a five-year contract with the Los Angeles Kings.  Under the NHL rules, the Capitals and Kings conferred and reached agreement on players and draft picks to be given by Los Angeles to Washington to compensate Washington for the loss of Puck.



Three years later, in 1992, the Kings signed another all-star free agent, Larry O. Millieu, who had played his first six seasons for the Quebec Nordiques.  Quebec and Los Angeles could not reach agreement on compensation to Quebec for the loss of Millieu, so that matter was submitted to arbitration.  The arbitrator ruled that Los Angeles had to send Peter Puck to Quebec to compensate Quebec for the loss of Millieu.  Because Puck had been in the NHL for less than ten years, he had no right under the NHL collective bargaining agreement to insist that he be allowed to stay in Los Angeles.  



After some difficult sessions with his family, Puck decided that even though he had two very lucrative years (1992-93 and 1993-94) remaining on his contract, he would not move to Quebec.  When the NHL would not budge and Quebec refused to trade him, Puck retired in 1992 and did not play during the 1992-93 season.  



One year later, in 1993, the new International Hockey League ("IHL") was formed and Puck signed a four-year contract with the Los Angeles franchise of the IHL, the L.A. Smog, starting with the 1993-94 season.  The Quebec Nordiques filed an immediate action in Los Angeles, seeking an injunction against Puck playing for the Smog.



Prepare a memorandum for Puck, identifying all of the issues and arguments, giving Puck legal advice, and predicting the outcome of Quebec's lawsuit.  If you do not have enough information to assess an issue or the strength of an argument, explain what additional information you will want to gather.

QUESTION NUMBER 2


Concerned about the continuing financial viability of their outdoor soccer league, and unable to reach agreement with their players' union, the five remaining owners of American Professional Soccer League (APSL) teams announced the termination of their league on May 1, 1992.  One month later, on June 1, 1992, those five owners and five additional owners announced the formation of a new league, the United States Soccer League, Inc. ("USSL").



The USSL is a corporation with ten shareholders, each owning 10% of the stock.  The former Commissioner of the APSL was named the President and Chief Executive Officer of USSL, Inc. and each shareholder was named Executive Vice-president and given responsibility for running one of the ten USSL, Inc. teams.  All team expenses and revenues and all other league expenses and revenues are expenses and revenues of USSL, Inc.  Each team is simply one division of the USSL corporation.  The ten Executive Vice Presidents receive year-end bonuses that depend on the financial success of the corporation and the success of their division.  



3.
All players were paid based on their years of experience in professional outdoor soccer:




a.
Rookies - $30,000 per year




b.
For each year of professional outdoor soccer league experience -- another $10,000 per year (e.g., after four years, player's annual salary is $70,000).




c.
Bonuses based on team performance (e.g., an extra $10,000 per player if team makes the play-offs).



4.seq level3 \h \r0 
The initial player selection is determined by a player draft of all eligible players by the ten executive vice presidents.



5.
All player contracts are for one year, with the league having three one-year options.



6.
When computing a player's years of experience in professional outdoor soccer to determine the player's salary in the USSL, years played in any professional outdoor soccer league in any country count as years of experience for USSL purposes.  



7.
However, if a player plays for a non-USSL soccer team in the United States in 1992 or any subsequent years, and then subsequently signs with a USSL team, unless the USSL President issues a special waiver of this rule, the player will be considered a USSL rookie for salary purposes when he signs with the USSL team. 



8.
Any calendar year in which USSL players first form a union or refuse to play through a boycott or strike does not count in determining those players' years of experience playing professional soccer outdoors, because those events are likely to limit the amount of soccer experience the players achieve during those years.



It is now 1993.  USSL players are considering forming a union and the Professional Outdoor Soccer League ("POSL") is being formed, with eight teams -- all in the United States.  You have been consulted by Tony Goalie, a former APSL Player who now plays for a USSL team and has been drafted by a POSL team.  You have also been consulted by some of the owners of POSL teams.



Goalie and POSL want to know what claims they may have against USSL, Inc. and its owners.  Prepare a memorandum, discussing (a) the legal rights, claims, related issues, and remedies of the players and (b) the legal rights, claims, related issues, and remedies of the POSL owners.  Please identify all of the issues and arguments, and predict the outcomes.



If you do not have enough information to assess an issue or the strength of an argument, explain what additional information you would want to gather.

____________________________________________

EXAMINATION IN SPORTS & THE LAW
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May, 1991



All facts presented in this exam, while they may or may not be modeled after actual fact situations, are purely hypothetical and they do not accurately describe any actual fact situation.

QUESTION NO. 1


Andy Attackman is a junior and the top player on Pennsylvania State University's top-ranked hockey team.  At the end of the hockey season, Attackman interviewed several professional hockey agents and signed an athlete-agent contract with Oscar Opportunist in late February, 1991.  Under NCAA rules, Attackman thereby forfeited his remaining NCAA eligibility and Opportunist violated the Pennsylvania athlete-agent statute which provides in pertinent part, as follows:



§ 7107.  Unlawful actions by athlete agents.




(a)
Offense defined -- An athlete agent shall not do any of the following:





(1)
Enter into an oral or written contract . . . with a student athlete before the student athlete's eligibility for collegiate athletics expires.







*
*
*




(b)
Penalty -- An athlete agent who violates subsection (a) commits a misdemeanor of the first degree and shall, upon conviction, be sentenced to pay a fine of not more than $10,000 . . . or imprisonment for not more than one year, or both.



The Pittsburgh Penguins had the rights to the first pick in the National Hockey League draft, so Opportunist contacted them to see if they were interested in Attackman.  The Penguins were very interested and signed a four-year deal with Attackman in March, 1991 under which Attackman would receive $200,000 per year plus a $200,000 house for Attackman's mother in Pittsburgh.  To protect Opportunist from Pennsylvania discovering that Opportunist had violated the Pennsylvania athlete-agent statute, Attackman, Opportunist, and the Penguins all agreed to keep the deal a secret from the press until after Attackman announced that he was going to leave Penn State to turn professional.  



Attackman wanted to wait until April to announce his deal with the Penguins because Attackman's mother was still upset about Attackman's father's death in December, 1990.  Attackman knew his mother would be heartbroken when she learned Attackman was not going to finish and get his college degree from Penn State.  



In late March, before any announcement, a new professional hockey league was announced, the International Hockey League ("IHL").  The owner of the Harrisburg Highstickers, an IHL franchise in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, offered Attackman a contract that would pay Attackman to finish college in the     off-season plus one million dollars over four years, plus a $400,000 house for Attackman's mother in Harrisburg.  



On April 15, 1991, Attackman and Opportunist held a press conference.  At the press conference, Attackman announced that he was foregoing his final year of NCAA eligibility.  After that announcement, Attackman and Opportunist announced that they were going to support the formation of a new hockey league and, in front of all of the cameras, Attackman announced that the Harrisburg Highstickers has offered to pay for Attackman to finish his college education at Penn State in the off-season and to get his law degree after his hockey career ends.  At that point, Attackman announced that he would sign the Harrisburg Highsticker's contract and signed the contract in front of all of the media.  Attackman's mother was at the press conference and she was so happy that she cried when Michael Cozzillio, the owner of the Highstickers, gave her a model of the $400,000 house they were going to build for her and a certificate for free tuition for Attackman at Penn State and the law school of his choice.



When the Penguins learned of the announcement, they held a press conference and produced a copy of their contract with Attackman, which was executed in March, 1991 and signed by the NHL Commissioner on April 1, 1991.  The Penguins promptly filed suit against the Harrisburg Highstickers and Andy Attackman, seeking (1) a declaratory judgment that their contract with Attackman is valid and (2) an injunction against Attackman playing for the Harrisburg Highstickers.


(a)
What arguments would the Penguins make in support of their position?


(b)
What arguments would the Highstickers and Attackman make in response?


(c)
You are the Judge-how would you rule and why?

QUESTION NUMBERS 2 AND 3


In the aftermath of Bo Jackson's apparently career-ending injury, a leading medical journal published an article by and orthopedist, Dr. U. R. Hurt, about the reasons for Jackson's condition.  Dr. Hurt concluded that Jackson's career-ending condition was caused by Jackson playing both baseball for the Kansas City Royals and football for the Oakland Raiders.  According to Dr. Hurt, the same condition is likely to occur in any other athletes over 20 years old who attempt to play those two sports at the highest professional levels during the same twelve-month period.  As the article explained, it is Dr. Hurt's view that the stresses involved in the contact inherent in football, when combined with the stresses involved when running bases and fielding in baseball, put too much pressure on the hip joint and can cause it to deteriorate.  Dr. Hurt's article concluded that this condition is less likely to develop if athletes take twelve months off before switching from baseball to football or vice versa.  



The national news media picked-up the story and headlines in newspapers all over the country read "Bo Jackson Crippled By Leagues' Decision To Let Him Play Two Sports," and "Leagues Did Not Know What Was Best For Bo."  Jackson was a very popular player, as his "Bo Knows" commercials for Nike and his book, Bo Knows Bo, were very positively received by fans nationwide.  Hundreds of fans wrote to National Football League Commissioner Paul Tagliabue and Major League Baseball Commissioner Fay Vincent, criticizing the commissioners and threatening to boycott NFL and Major League Baseball games and broadcasts.



Both Tagliabue and Vincent were concerned about the fans' reactions and protecting their players from career-ending injuries, so they began meeting to discuss the situation.  After several meetings, they each issued a new rule to address the problem:


National Football League Rule


No team in the National Football League or any representative of any NFL team shall negotiate or sign a contract with any athlete (except if the athlete will be employed by the NFL team solely and exclusively as a punter or a kicker) who is involved in negotiations with or is under contract with any Major League or Professional Minor League baseball team.  Any contract between an NFL team and an athlete that is signed while the athlete is under contract or in negotiations with a Major League or Professional Minor League baseball team is void and will not be approved by the NFL Commissioner (except if the athlete will be employed by the NFL team solely and exclusively as a punter or a kicker).


Major League Baseball Rule


No Major League Baseball team or any representative of a Major League Baseball team shall negotiate with or sign a contract with any athlete who is involved in negotiations or is under contract with any National Football League, World League of American Football ("WLAF") or Canadian Football League ("CFL") team (except if the athlete is involved in negotiations or is under contract solely and exclusively to be employed as a punter or a kicker).  Any contract between a Major League baseball team and an athlete that is signed while the athlete is under contract or in negotiations with an NFL, WLAF, or CFL team is void and will not be approved by the Commissioner of Major League baseball (except if the athlete is involved in negotiations or is under contract solely and exclusively to be employed as a punter or a kicker).



Shortly after these rules were issued by the NFL and Major League Baseball commissioners, 6'8" Dan McGwire of San Diego State University was drafted by the Seattle Seahawks in the National Football League and by the San Diego Padres Major League Baseball team.  Dan's older brother, Mark McGwire, was already a superstar with the Oakland A's.  Dan signed a three-year contract with the Seahawks, and became their second-string quarterback.  As two frustrating years of sitting on the bench were coming to an end, Dan McGwire contacted the San Diego Padres' management and indicated that he would like to talk to them about either (1) leaving the National Football League to play baseball or (2) playing baseball for the Padres in the Spring and Summer, and playing football for the Seahawks in the Fall.  The Padres' management responded that McGwire still had a year remaining on his NFL contract and his NFL team was negotiating with him concerning renewal of his contract, so Vincent's rule prohibited negotiations with the Padres or any other major league baseball team.  


Question Number 2 is:


What advice would you give Dan McGwire if he came to you to ask about possible antitrust litigation against Fay Vincent and the Major League Baseball rule?


Question Number 3 is:


What advice would you give Dan McGwire if he came to you to ask about possible labor litigation, including arbitration, by McGwire or the NFLPA or the Major League Baseball Players Association to allow McGwire to negotiate to play baseball or both baseball and football?
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